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Dep. Dist. Atty. David N. Fitts made the opening staeement for 

the prosecution and presented this information:

Sirhan was in the Ambassador Hotel kiCchen 47 hours before the 

assassination and was seen by two witnesses.

Returning to the kiChhen on June 5, 1968, Sirhan shot the 

Senator at almost point-blank range, firing several shots which fatally 

wounded Kennedy and injured five others. '

On the day of the shooting, Sirhan spent most of the time at the 

San Gabbiel Valley Gun Club, and told another club patron he was going to 

use his gun for hunting.

"It could kill a doo," Fitts said Sirhan told a witness who will 

testify latter in the trial, reported a Los Angeles newspaper (Herald­

Examiner) .

Sirhan told Jess Unruh, former State Assembly speaker, he shot 

Kennedy "for my con^ry." The starimett was made when Unruh accompanied 

Sirhan and two police officers to the Rammprt Division Police Station fol­

lowing the arrest of the Jordanian immigrant.. Unruh will testify to this

Fitts said, according to the newspaper.

Fitts began his presentation with a series of key dates, which 

he liseed in chronological order.

The first was August 10, 1965, when Albert Leslie Hertz purchased 

a .22 caliber "Cadet" Ive--0ohnsit, eight-shot revolver. The pistol 

eventually found its way into the possession of George Erhart, a co-worker 

of Munir Sirhain, the defendant's brother.

On the next date, on or about February 2, 1968, Fitts added, 

Erhart drove to the Sirhan home in Pasadena, with a companion and "in the
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daylight hours waited jointly for Munir and Sirhan Sirhan." The purpose 

of thk visit was to sell Munir the gun, reported the newspaper-.

Munir produced $19 and the defendant paid $6 for the gun. .

On June 1, 1968, Sirhan visieed a gun shop in Pasadena, where lie 

purchased "several boxes of .22 caliber ammunntion called ’mini-rngnuum’ 

foom a clerk," said Fitts.

"Geeting ahead of uy story," Fitts continued, "Sen. Kennedy was 

kiieed with uini-mannuui amunition."

On June 2, 1968, there was a reception for the Senator and ". . . 

among those who ateended was Sirhan Sirhan. He was observed in the lobby 

area" of the Ambassador Hotel.

Fitts also stated that Mrs. Miraam Davis went into the Ambassador 

kitchen for a drink of water and "she observed Sirhan in one of the kit­

chens leaning on a bar, dressed casually. She mistook him for a hotel 

employee.

"She will testify at this triLal."

The next date noted by Fitts was June 4, 1968, electoon day. 

Sirhan went to the San GGbbiel Valley Gun Club where he "spent hours on 

thw pistol range, engaged in rapid fire practice at which he excelled.”

On June 5, said Fitts, Sirhan "stood on a tray rack in a recess 
area iaaedeately alongsdde the ice machine. Sirhan stepped quickly foom 
the rack . . .

"The Senator stood ail unaware.

"Sirhan reached into the waistband of his trous^s.

"Hk walked to the side of Karl Decker (hotel mitre de standing 

with Kennedy) . . .
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"He extended his right arm across in front of Uecker. His left 

hand was in the vicinity of the Senntor's head . . . and at point-blank 

range he freed eight shots.

"It is probably the first shot that resulted in the Sennaor's 

death 25 hours later. •

"The muzzle range (of this shot) was one inch. Kennedy's right 

hand went to his right ear."

The force of the shots knocked Kennedy to the ground. "He fell 

backward and came to rest diagonally to the ice machine"

Fitts said that Bill Barry, a Kennedy bodyguard, wrestled the 

gun away from Sirhan, but the wiry Jordanian regained it. "... the scene 

was complete pandemonimm . . .

"Roosevelt Grier (former football star and member of the Kennedy 

team) was accompanying Mrs. Ethel Kennedy . . . They were still outside 

the kicchen.

"Grier is a large man . . .

"He pushed his way through the crowd . . . and wrestled the gun 

foom the defendant . . .
"He gave it to Rafer Johnson (former Olympic decathlon star and 

another Kennedy partisan) for safekeeping ..."

Fitts continued, "Johnson asked, ’Why di.d you do it?’"

"Sirhan answered, ’I will explain. ifi

Fitts then proceeded to tell of Sirhan's arrest and his refusal 

to divugge his name to police.

When Travis White, one of the police offccers who arrested 

Sirhan, asked the defendant about the crime, Sirhan repleed: "You think

I
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I aim crazy ... so you can use it in evidence against me . . .t: 

' Sirhan carried no documents when arrested, but did have an 

automobile key and $480.1.0 i.n cash, including four $100 bills.

The key led to tracnng the defendant’s car parked near the Am­

bassador Hooel. In the car was Sirhan's wallet and a receipt for ammuni- 

toon bearing his fingerprints.

Sirhan, contnnued Fitts, was not identifidd unnil hiLs brother, 

Muiir, went to the Pasadena Police Station to idennify him.

Kennedy, related the deputy district attorney, was taken to the 

Cennral Receiving Hospital and later transfereed to Good Samaaitan Hospi­

tal, where a team of physicians, led by Dr. Henry Cuneo, perfommed brain 

surgery.

A bullet was recovered which baHistics tests will show was 

freed foom Sirhan's gun, Fitts aiegged.

Cooninuing his nlriltSon, Fitts stated:

"At roughly 1:4-5 a.m., June 6, 1968, the Senator expired. He 

was pronounced dead by Dr. Cunee."

There were "five bullet holes in the coat the Senator was 

wearing — three entry hol.es and two exit," said Fitts. "Tests showed 

that the muzzle range for Hl the shots freed ranged foom one to six 

inches.

"The evidence in this case will show that the defendant, Sirhan 

Sirhan, alone was responsible for this tragic incident.

"He acted alone and not in concert with others . . . !i concluded 

Fitts. ,

One Los Angeles newspaper (Herald.-Examiner) reported that, "The
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defense scored one point during the prosecution opening.

"Fitts tried to make reference to diaries Sirhan kept which were 

seized in a search of his Eldena home the morning of the shooting. The 

defense, which clems they were seized iieegally, objected, and Judge 

Herbert V. Welker, presiding over the trial, sustained their objection.’1

Before Fitts began his presentation, Judge WaUker told the 

jurors ttet aLl of the attorneys were "competent, ethical and good lawyer’s;?

He ^Lso stated that opening statements were not to be considered 
as evidence, but rather as outlnnes of what the defense and prosecution 

propose to prove.
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FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 14 — "Sirhan Bishara Sirhan rose from his 

chair to protest the opening stakement of his own defense counsel Friday, 

as attorney Emile Zola Berman descrieed him as an ’immature, emootonally 

disturbed and monially ill youth,”' reported Dave Smith, staff writer, in 

a Los Angeles newspaper (Times).

As Berman said his client, the accused assassin of Senator 

Robert F. Kennedy, was oiknally ill, Sirhan began to rise from his chair 

and murmured "No, No,17 continued the writer. '

. At this point, Supeeior Court Inspector Wiliam Conroy leaned 

over the chair of Michael McCowan, defense investigator, and said "Talk 

to him, Mike."

McCowan leaned over, pushed Sirhan back into his chair with both 

hands and lectured him for several minutes as Berman contnnued his opening 

stakimknt.

Jin his remarks, Berman said, "There i.s no doubt and we have told 

you this from the beginning, that he did in fact fire the shot that kiieed 

Senator Kennedy."

Berman added that his client "admired and loved" the Senator and 

killed the Senator when "he was out of contact with reality, in a trance 

in which he had no voluntary control over his will., his judgment, his 

feelings or his actions."

The attorney said that the kilinng "was unplanned and unddliilr- 

ate; impulsive and without prloeedtathon or malice, totally a product of a 

sick, oisessey miM and pelrsnality."

He then outlied a story of wartime atrocity and chiddhood

emotional yistubbancl in Sirhan’s first 12 year’s in his native Palestine,
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saying that it was at the sight of viokence in the israeli-Aaab conflicts, 

and exposure to drngnr and flight from bombs that Sirhan began to expert- 

ence spells or trances.

Berman claimed that psychhatrisss and sociologists would support 

defense evidence that these experiences left the defendant with obsessions 

and fantasees that deepened seriously after the family immigrated here in 

1957, finally leaving him so mennally deteriorated that he was incapabee 

of premediated murder, toe newspaper reported.

The late Senntor's campaign staeements in May and June, 1968, 

advocating U. S. military aid 1° Israel were a "heavy stock" to Sirto, 

said Bkr’mtn.

In concluding the opening staeement, Berman asked the jury "to 

liseen to the evidence, to adopt what science has to ^ffer and to insult 

your conscience. In short, let true justice be donn.”
Following the stanomeft, the prosecution called three witnesses, 

Karl Uecker, assistant mitre d’hotel at the Ambassador Hotel; Edward 

MLnasiLtln, formerly an assistant mm atm d'totel; and Juan Romero, former 

busboy.

Uecker told the jury that he was leading Sen. Kennedy by the 

right hand from a victory celebration in the Embassy BalArrom to another 

party on the frorA below when an unidentifeed Kennedy aide told him:

"No, we’re not going to go there. We’re going to the press 

A’rrm.1,
It was last~mfnuee decision, said the hotel official. As Uecker 

led Kennedy, srmnrnn brushed past him quickly as he looked another way, 

and decker heard "something like a fAnccrackeA,ii foltowed by another and 

another.
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The first "fieecracker, ii the prosecution told the jury in its 

opening statement yesterday, was a bullet freed from one inch from the 

Sennaor's head, and is bdeeved to have been the shot that resulted in his 

death 25 hours later.

Minasian, who was also leading the Senator, said he believed 

Kennedy saw the gun that took his liee.

"I beleeve he raised his hand to try to protect himself bkeausk 

I’m sure he saw the revolver, the same as I did," Minasian told the jury.

The other witness, Romero, said he knelt besi.de the strCcken 

senator and placed a rosary in the dying hand.

The defense lawyers quest-Loned the three witnesses "closely on 

the placement of large wall mirrors outside the Embassy Bairooom, whem 

Sirhan is said to have lrieeked for much of the evening," reported a Los 

Angeles newspaper (Times).

Continued the article:

"T^ purpose of these questions was not speccfied, but they 

seemed to indicate the defense might atnompt to show that Sirhan was in a 

state of self-indueed hypnosis at the time of the slaying.

"The questoons recalled Berman's eaalier stanomnnts about Sirhan’s 

dabbling with mystic experiments with f’shing sinkers, candles and mirrors, 

his "spells" and "trances" and hypnosis performed on him since the 

assassination by defense psyceiirrists.
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MEMORANDUM - '

TO: MEMBERS OF THE PRESS, RADIO, TV COVERING THE SlfHIAN TRIAL
FROM: EVELLE J. YOUNGER ' ' •
- • • ■" -Los Angeles County District Attorney .

SUBJECT: WEEKLY SUMMARY . - . . •

DATE: JANUARY 6, 1969 • . •

Because of widespread interest in the assassination of Senator . •

Robert F. Kennedy in Los Angeles on Wednesday, June 5, 1968, and , I 

proceedings din court, the Los Angeles County District Attorneys • 

Office has been publishing a weekly summary of acdvities in 

coimeeCion with the case,

The summaries are for release on Wednesdays after 10' a.m. and may 

be obtanned from Jerry Littman, District Attorney's News Secretary„ 

Room 618, Haai of Justice, after 4 p.m. each Tuesday, until the . •

trial’s conclusion. Additional information may be obtained by . 

calling 626-3888, Extension 82396. ■ ■ .

Back issues of the Weekly Summary may also be obtained from the 
news secretary. ' • .
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NEWS RELEASE W FOR FURTHER INFORMATION
Office of the District Attorney Call: Jerry Littman ■

• 600 Haal of Justice ___ News Secretary _ _
Los Angeles, Cclifornii 90012 626-3888, Ext. 82396

• - RELEASE: IMMEDIATELY ;

• DIST. ATTY. EVELLE J. YOUNGER NAMES THREE DEP. DIST.

ATTYS. AS PROSECUTORS IO SIRHAN B. SIIHiAN CASE ’ '

Three men in the Los Angeles County District Attorney's Office ■

hive been named by Dist. .Atty. Evelle J. Younger to prosecute Sirhin-B. 

Sirhin, the accused assassin of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy. ■

■ ' Heading the unit is Chief Dep. Dist. Atty. Lynn D. Comtton, who

■ is assisted by Dep. Dist. Attys. John E. Howard, head of the special 

investigatoons divisoon, and David O. Fitts.

. Younger, who was re-elected to his second four-year term as * 

district attonney in June, 1968, was born in Nebraska, and received his 

A.B. and LL.B, degrees foot the University of Nebraska. .

■ He has served as an FBI agent, deputy Los Angeles city attorney, 

Plsldenl city prosecutor, MuuocIpiI and Superior Court Judge and is 
presently a brigadier general in the Air Force Reserve. • .

. Compton jonned the district l•ttooney.'s staff in 1951 and was

appointed chief deputy district attorney in 1966. He has had extensive 
■ trial experience, including •■clpetll cases as have his two associates.

He graduated foom Loyola Unnversity Law School in 1949.

Howard jonned the district attorney's staff-in 1952 and has served 

as County Grand Jury■advisor and in the major frauds and trials-divisonns. 

He graduated from Loyola Law School in 1951. '

■ The third prosecutor,' Fitts, jonned the staff in. 1954 and has brrn 

in the trials divisoon since 1958. He received his law degree foom 

Stanford in 1950. . . ’

1-6-69 . # ■ •



Off e District Attorney 

600 Hall of Justice 
Los Angeles, Cali^ornil 5

FOR fuRtherljnformiatm
dl: Jerry LiCtman
News Secretary •
626-3888, Ext. 82356

RELEASE.: Tuesday, Jan- 7, 1565

SPECIAL SUPPLEMENT TO WEEKLY SUMMARY 

Re: The Assassination of
Senator Robert F. Kennedy

Note to editors: Because of ^desp^Hdr ’ -
Not^rest in °he assassination ^ Senator •
Robert F. Ke-’-d; ^gLos S'PeocoedngJs ■
Wednesday,.Junefficeof Los Angeles County ' ,
in court, che Oiixc __ T younEer is pub- .. s^.Aw.-msf:^

ish ieeeoa1^^^ • . ■

■ JANUARY^ - The Los Angeles County G-d Suy. In is

■ 1968 report issued coday, said ■ notable o - — he"^ 
156 p ■ Robert F. Kennedy. ,

morning hours of

Jury had heard 23

• x a? th? alleged assassin of Senatorthe indictment of the axxegea
"Senator Kennedy was killed d^^g. the ealy

June 5, 1968-' By Friday, 

witnesses and returned an

June 7, 1968, ‘he Grand
indictment against S±rhan Bshara S*rhan for

the assasslnatoon of Senator Kennedy.

..Special argents were made to —te a11 f ^r 
sentatlees loom the news a who had converged upon the HU of

Justice to report the proceedings. . a
, escort the Grand Jurors to and

"Arrangements were also ma ■

‘ from the hearing ro°m." • ' •
K 4 5

SUNDAY^ JANUARY 5
-- Sirhan Bishara Sirha, the 24-year old *Jordanian

- immigrant, accused of assassinate Senator Robert F. Kennedy, was df 
Angeles newspaper (HeraldEEaaminer) as a man 0

cribed today in a Los 

many moodd.11
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• The newspaper quoted his brother. Said, of New York, noting that 

Sirhan "is a nice kid" His former emmloyer, John H. Weidner, described 
■ Sirhan as-a man "who knows very weei what he is doing," while former

classmates said Sirhan was inteliieent, thoughhful, polite and moody.

Meaanwhle, another Los Angeles newspaper (Times) devoted much space 

j to "Sirhan — the Wanderer -- Never Found His Way." ■

6 The Times related that "though he has pleaded innocent, that he shot 

1 Kennedy is beyond dispute; he was seized before he fnnished .shooting. 
What is pertinent, and what the defense will hinge upon, his attorney

1 says, is ‘Why he did it? Is he responsible? ”’
In the Times article, Rtfcert C. Toth and'Dave Smith, staff writers, 

tell of Sirhan's background as described "by those closest to hii.,,
His father told the writers that, "In 1948, he saw many things, ' 

' . woundings and suffernngs..." Another person n°tes that the accused '

' assassin was "religious, clever. Every Sunday he went to Sunday School.

He prayed before going to bed." , ■ • ’
A former teacher of Sirhan said "He was not a boy in his head. You 

respected Sirhan when he talked" Someone el^ added that "He was a _ 

clever boy   very quick — but unstable and very unhappy.” ’

■ . John Dougias, HeraldEEx«miner staff wwiter, said today "tte defen-

dann‘s mental state may occupy more court tmie than teitimoay relatnng 

to the shooting.
"The somber fact that, if convicted the young Jordnien immigrant 

. could suffer the death penaaty, has been overshadowed in the prelmi.- 

. naries of the case by questions of motive.raised again and again by the

defense. ‘
more— ■
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"In the words of Ruussel E. Parsons, one of Sirhan’s lawyers: '
■ "'.,,What are the real issues? .

"'If he is the man, why did he do it?’ . ■

"To the prosecutOon, headed by Chief Dep. Dis;.‘.Atty. Lynn D.

Compton, there i.s little question t;hat Sirhan i.s guUlty. : t
"The indCttment returned by the Los Angeles County' Grand Jury

aieeges that 'on or about t;he fifth day of June, 1968, at and in the ■ 

CoUnty of Los Angeles,..Sirhan Bishara Sirhan did willfully, unlawfully, 
feloniously and with malice aforethought murder Robert Francis Kennedy, 

a human being.*

"And that i.s precisely what Compton and his associates think they 
can prove. - - - .

■ ■ "Ther’e is every indication that the prosecutors will seek the death 

penalty. . ■ .
"But if Attorneys Grant Cooper, Pisons and Em1 Zola Bejmrn can 

conVince the jury that Sirhan acted without maaice, their client could 

get off with as little as five year’s i.n prison.” ‘

The Herald-Examiner al.so recapped what happened on June 5, 1968 in 

this fashion: . .

. "It was approximately 12:20 a.m. the morning of June 5, 1968. More , 
than 1000 wildly enthusiastic Demoorats jested each other and cheered 

in the hot j armed Embassy Room of the Arnmaasador Hooel, a CaU^r^ 

victory theirs. ' .

"At the.Cinderella hour, Sen. Rooert F. Kennedy had stepped before

• the microphone t;o acknowledge his trimmph in the CCaifornia Dem^ratic 

primly election and to thank them for their support.

more— • . • ■
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"The Kenneys and their party, bound for private celebrating at 

The Factory, changed their planed exit course through the packed crowd 

in the stifling balloon. ' • .
"Avoiding the room's main entrance, tiiey moved toward a kicchen ,

pantry. In the pantry was a man now accused as the assassinn of Sen. 

Kennedy -- Sirhan Bishara Sirhan. ■ ' •
"Shots rang out. . . _ ’
"A man identifeed by police as Siriian was cru^ed to the floor and 

a pistol wrenched from his hand. ’
“Nearby Senator Kennedy sprawled on his back on tie floor, hi-s eyes 

blazing, immoOble.
' "Tweeny-five and one-half hours ^r Senaor Kernel was dead."

Five other persons were also wounded that night, including Paul .
Schrade, shot i.n the head; William Weisel, wounided in the abdomen; Irwin 

Stoll, shot in the leg; Ira Goldstein, sh°t in the left hip5 and Ms- 

Eliaabeth Evans, scalp wound.

. "All are ixpictie to testiy in the murder tl^lil of Mrfcm,’ n^ed 

the Herald-Examiner. .

##



MEMORANDUM •

TO: MEMBERS OF THE PRESS, RADIO, TV COVERING THE SI KI AN TRIAL
FROM: EVELLE J. YOUNGER ' ' . '

Los Angeles County District Attorney .

SUBJECT: WEEKLY SUMMARY .

DATE: JANUARY 6, 1969 .

Because of widespread interest in the assassinatOon of Senator . ■
Robert F. Kennedy in Los Angeles on Wednesday, June 5, 1968, and ; I 

proceedings in court, the Los Angeles County District Attorney’s 

Office has been publishing a weekly summary of activitees in 

connectoon with the case.

The sumnaaies are for release on Wednesdays after 10' am. and may 

be stained from Jerry Li.tmaan, District Attorney’s News Secretary, 

Room 618, Hall of Justice, after 4 pm. each Tuesday, unil the , 

trial's conclusion. Additional inOoraatOin may be obtained by 

caimng 626-3888, Extension 82396. •

Back issues of the Weekly Summary may also be obtained from the
news secretary. •
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NEWS RELEA.SE W FOR FURTHER INfFORMATIQN'
Office of the District Attorney Call: Jerry Littman
600 Hall of Justice News Secretary
Los Angeles, California 90012 626-3888, Ext. 82396

RELEASE: IMMEDIATELY

DIST. ATTY. EVELLE J. YOUNGER NAMES THREE DEP. DIST. 

ATTYS. AS PROSECUTORS IN SIIHIAN B. SIKAIN CASE

Three men in the Los Angeles County District Attorney’s Office 

have been named by Dist;.Atty. Evelle J. Younger to prosecute Sirhan B. 

Sirhan, the accused assassin of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy.

' Heading the unit is Chief Dep. Dist. Atty. Lynn D. Cornmton, who

is assisted by Dep. Dist. Attys. John E. Howard, head of the specCal 

investigatoons division, and David N. Fitts.

Younger, who was re-elected to his second four-year term as 

district attorney in June, 1968, was born in Nebraska, and received his 

A.B. and LL.B, degrees from the University of Nebraska.

He has served as an FBI agent, deputy Los Angeles city attorney, 

Pasadena city prosecutor, Municipal and Superior Court judge and is 

presently a brigadier general in the Air Force Reserve.

Compton jonned the district attorney's staff in 1951 and was 

appointed chief deputy district attonney in 1966. He has had extensive 
trial experience, including capital cases as have his two associates. 
He graduated from Loyola Diversity Law School in 1949.

Howard joned the district attorney's staff in 1952 and has served 

as County Grand Jury advisor and in the major frauds and traass divisions. 

He graduated foom Loyola Law School in 1951.

The third prosecutor,- Fitts, jonned the staff in 1954 aM has brrn 

in the trials division since 1958. He received his law degree from 

Stanford in 1950. ■
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The newspaper quoted his brother. Said, of New York:, noting that 

Sirhan "is a ni.ce kid.” His former employer, John H. Weidner, described 
Sirhan as-a man 'Who knows very wed what he i.s doing,” while former 

classmates said Sirhan was inteliieent, thoughhful, polite and moody.

Meanwwhle, another Los Angeles newspaper (Times) devoted much space 

j 00 "Sirhan — the Wanderer — Never Found His Way." •
a The Times related that "though he has pleaded innocent, that he sh°t 

| Kennedy is beyond dispute; he was seized before he fnnsshed shooting. 
I What is pertinent, and what the defense will hinge upon, Ms attoneey 
1 snys, i.s ’Why he did it? Is he responsible?”'

in tie Times ^tiMe, Robert C. Toth and Dave Smith, staff writers, 

tell of Sirhan’s background as described- "by th°se Mo^’t to Mm."

His father told the writers that, "In 1948, he saw many things, 

woundings and suffernngs..." Another person ^tes that tie scused 

assassin was ''rhligtous, clever. Every Sunday he went to Sunday School. 

He prayed before going to bed." - ’
A former teacher of Sirhan said "He was not a boy in his head. You 

respected Sirhan when he ta^d." Someone ^s** added that !H[h w^ a 

ciever boy -- very quick -- but unstable and very unhappy.”

John Douglas, Herald-Examiner staff writer, said today "tie dh"hn- 

dant's mental state may occupy more court tine than testimony relating 

to the shooting.
"The somber fact that, if convicted, the young Jord^^ immigrant 

could suffer the death penaaty, has been overshadowed in tie prelimi­

naries of the case by questions of motive raised again and again by tie 

defense.
more—
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"In the words of RusseCl E. Parsons, one of Sirhan’s lawyers: •
Wiat arc the real issues?

"’If he is the man, why did he do it?’

"To the prosecution, headed by Chief Dep. Dist.‘Atty. Lynn D. 

Compton, there is little question that Sirhan is guilty.
"The indittment returned by the Los Angeles County Grand Jury 

aHeges that ’on or about the fifth day of June, 1968, at and in the 
County of Los Angeles...Sirhan Bishara Sirhan.did willfully, unlawfully, 
feloniously and with malice aforethought murder Robert Francis Kennedy, 

a human bei.ng. ‘ ’
"And that is precisely what Compton and his associates think they 

can prove. ■ •
"There is every indication that the prosecutors will seek the death 

penalty.

"But if Attorneys Grant Cooper, Parsons and Emil Zola Berman can 

convince the jury that Sirhan acted without malice, their client could 
get off with as little as five year’s in prison.”

The Herald-Examiner also recapped what happened on June 5, 1968 in 

this fashion:
"It was approximately 12:20 a.m. the morning of June 5, 1968. More 

than 1000 wildly enthusiastic Democrats josteed each other and cheered 

i.n the hot jaimed Embassy Room of the Amiassador Hooel, a Califcrnil 

victory theirs. .

"At the Cinderella hour, Sen. Robert F. Kennedy had stepped before 
the microphone to acknowledge his trumphi in the Californil Dernmoratic 

primary electoon and to thank them for their support.

more— •
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''The Kennedys and their party, bound for private celebrating at 

The Factory, changed their planned exit course through the packed crowd 

in the stifling bairooom. .
"Avoiding the room’s main entrance, they moved toward a kitchen 

pantry. In the pantry was a man now accused as tae assassin of Sen. 

Kennedy -- Sirhan Bishara Sirhan. • ' ‘
"Shots rang out.
"A man identifeed by police as Sirhan was cr’ush-d t° the fl°or and 

a pistol wrenched from his hand.
"Nearby Senior Kennedy sprawled on hl-s back on the fl°or, hl-s eyes 

- blazing, immooble.
"Tweeny-five and oee-hhaf hours tater Senator Kernel was de^-"

Five other persons were also wounded Wat night, including Pail 

Schrade, shot in the head; WilUarn Weisel, weeded in t^e ^dom™! Irwin 

Stoll, shot in the leg; Irra Goldstein, shot in the left hip; and Mrs* 

Eliaabeth Evans, scalp wound-

"All are expected to testify ln tie murder trial of Slrhan," Mted 

the Herald-Examiner.
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WEEKLY SUMMARY #38
Re: The ississinitOon of 
Senator Robert F. Kennedy

N°e.to.editor3:. .BeciUS? of the_widespreid interest 
in the issassination of Senator Robert F. Kennedy in 
Los Angeles on Wednesdiy, June 5, 1968, ind pro­
ceedings in court, the Office of Los Angeles County 
District Attorney Syelle J. Younger is publishing i 
weekly summary of the cise. This is the 38th 
summary, ind other's will be for release on subsequent 
Wednesdiys. q

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 17 — The prosecution todiy cilled seven wit­

nesses in the trial. of Sirhsin B. Sirhin, the iccused ississin of Sen. 
Robert F. Kennedy.

Roosevelt Gier, former Los Angel.es Ram tickle ind now host of 

i TV show, told the court thit he folded Sirhin’s leg mound his (Grier's) 

irm "ind put him on top of i tible."

Soon ^ter gribbing Sirhin, Gier related, he siw "one guy 

hurting hr.’ leg md sow people coding it him from the front, so I swung 

on them ind kicked the guy bick anl they seemed to reilize we were trying 

to sive the guy, so they stopped."

• Another ^-tness wis Assemblymin Jesse Unruh, who siid he wis

terribly iware t^t we could hive i repeit of the Oswald situitoon," ind

’houted reputedly, "Don’t kill him, don’t kill him, we’ve got to keep him 
ilive."

(Lee Harvey Oswald, iccused of ississiniting President John F. 

Kennedy in November,, 1963, wis murdered before being brought to trU). 

• Unr^ ^so declired thit he shouted, "If the systmm works ^t Hl,

more —
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at all, we are going to try this one” — presumably Sirhan, reported a 

Los Angeles newspaper (Times).

The newspaper also related that "defense questioning of both Grier 

and Unruh brought out that Sen. Kennedy’s detour through the kitchen 

corridor where he met death was a last minute change of plan."

AIeso testifynng was Vincent DiPierro, a part-time winter at the 

hotel.

The newspaper noted that he had acknowledged seeing a "girl in tide 

polka dot dress” and further acknowledged that on July 1 he admitted his 

story was false.

"Monday DiPierro testified that he had seen a girl in a polka dot 

dress earlier that night, and that after talking to another witness, 

Sandra Serrano, he had ’inieceed, the girl into the events immeddately 
surroundnng the shooting.

"At that time both Miss Serrano and DiPierro descrbbed the girl as 

wearing a black and white polka dot dress and standing near Sirhan, 

perhaps even talknng to him.

”Dep. Dist. Atty. David N. Fitts produced seven photographs of 

Valerie Schulte, whom Di Pierro said he bildeved was the same girl. In 

the photographs, however1, Miss Schultes dress was of yellow polka dots 

on a golden backgr’ound. No further connection was made between Miss 

Schulte and the shooting stend.”

Other witnesses today induded John W. GGaiivan, Jr., an advance 

man for the late senator; Jesus Perez, Ambassador Hotel kitchii worker; 

Maatin Patrusky, a hotel bartender; and Frank J. Burns, Jr., a Kdnnddy 

campaign worker.

"All gave eyewitness accounts of the slaying, Perez and Patrusky

more—
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testifying that Sirhan had loieeeed in the corridor for about half an 

hour before Sen. Kennedy came through, repeatedly asking if they knew 

whether he planned to come that way,” reported Dave Smith, staff writer 

for a Los Angeles newspaper (Times), 
x s

TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 18 — Teetifynng today for the prosecution in the 
Sirhan B. Sirhan cate were:

Everett C. Buckner, rangemaater of the San Gaabiel Valley Gun Club 

where Sirhan went target-practicing June 4, the eve of the assassination:

Valerie Schhlte, 22, former manager of Senator Robert F. Kennedy’s 

campaign office in GGoeta, and who was identifeed from photographs as the 

girl Vin^nt DiPierro, a witness yesterday, thought he saw near the scene 

of the shooting at the Ambassador Hotel;

Willas Barry, chief of security for the slain senator; and 

Rafer Johnson, former Olympics decathHon champion.

Reported Dave Smmth, staff writer for a Los Angeles newspaper (e---- ' 

"The cross-examination of witnesses helped dismiss for awhile the 

underlying fact that the outcmme of this phase of Sirhan*s trial — now 

seven weeks old — i.s a foregone conclusion: Sirhan did kill Sen. Kennedy 

and will not be acquitted; the only point at issue is determining the 
penalty.

"En route to that point, the prosecution is laying out its entire 

case in an effort to show that Sirhan’s act was sufficiently premedi­

tated t;o warrant a conviction of frsst-dgrede murder.

"The defense i.s bearing with the Sdstimony on the uvccvtdsted point 

i.n order to uv-drmind whatever eiiLddnce of premeedtation they can and, 

if necessary, di^redit witnesses who could strengthen the prosecution 

clam of malice aforethought.11

more—
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The newspaper reported that Defense Atty. Grant B. Cooper "employed 

this tactic" on Buckner. In attacking his creedibiity, "Cooper also 

wrote title finish to a staeement that months ago provided slight fuel to 

speculation that Sirhan might have been part of a conspiracy."

This came about when Cooper cited a staeement of Buckner’s last 

summer.

"Didn’t you say that a lady was with him (Sirhan)?" Cooper asked. 

The witness replied, "No, I said a lady came up and he showed her how to 

shoot.f

Continued Cooper to Buckner, "Did you or did you not say at that 

time that the lady told Sirhan, 'Get out of here, God damn you. Some­

body will recognize us?"

Buckner denied making the staeement, then said he had told police 

"it sounded that way," and that "I couldn’t hear them that wwei.”

Cooper then asked Buckner If he had not taken a lie detector test 

and fuunked it. Buckner answered he had "just funked on that question."

At this point, Dep. Dist. Atty. David N. Fitts objected to the lie 

detector tests, stating they were inadmissible. The exchange was stricken 

from the record.

Miss Schulte told the court that she couldn't have run at all last 

June 4, because she was on crutches as the result of a skiing accident, 

and ssill wears a brace on her right leg.

(DiPierro and Sandra Serrano, a witness yet to be called, told 

investigators last summer they had seen a girl i.n a black and white polka 

dot dress, talking to Sirhan and that she later ran from thie scene, 

shouting, "We shot him.")

Miss Schulte said she was wearing a polka dot dress, but not bl.a.ck 

and white. She exhibited the garment she wore that night. It was a

more—
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lime green mini-dress with canary yellow polka dots. ■

The witness also related she never even noticed Sirhan until the 

first shot was fired.

Barry described in a subdued and halting voice how he got separated 

from Kennedy, and explained that the Senator after fnnsshnng a victory 

staeement jumped foom the back of the stage instead of returning in 

Barry’s direction.

(He said he was back in the crowd, assisting Mrs. Kennedy and trying 

to catch up when the first shot was fired).

Johnson told of his part in the struggle to subdue Sirhan after the 

first shot was fieed. Johnson related that he took possession of Sirhan’s 

gun, after Roooevvlt Grier, former Los Angeles Rams tackle, who testifUe-’ 

yesterday, disarmed the suspect.

"One brief flurry of excieement interuupeed the trial when (Supee,ilr,) 

Judge Herbert V. Walker ordered the courtroom cleared after Baaiiff 

Willard Polhemus reported a ticknng noise in his desk,” reported a Los 

Angeles newspaper (Times).

"After a short search, it was discovered that teepphone repairs in 

the buildnng were causi.ng a solenoid in Polhemus ’ desk phone to click 

at regular intervals.” 

« * a

more—
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WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 19 -- The prosecution in the case of Sirhan B. 

Sirhan, the accused assassin of Senator Robert F. Kennedy today called 

the foioownng to testify:

George Pimpton, author, editor and Kennedy supporter;

Paul Schrade, regional vice president of the United Auto Workers 

and a member of the senaaor's entourage, who was among those injured.

Larry Kenneth Arnot, a former clerk at a Pasadena gun shop;

Mrs. Elizabeth Evans, who was injured the night of the assasssnaainn*

Ira Goodstein, who was also injured;

Irving StroU, another person who sustained injuries;

George C. Erhard, Jr., who sold the gun used in the assassination 

to Sirhan*s brother, Mtunr;

Wiliimn Price, who accompanied Erhard and another man to the scene 

of the gun sale; and

Mrs. Albert Leslie Hertz, who said she gave the gun to her dau'-a”' 

Mrs. Dana Westlake, who also testifeed today.

Plimpton, according to a Los Angeles newspaper (Times), s^d t^t 

after Sirhan shot Kennedy and was grabbed by oides of the senator, Sirhan 

was, "compared to the circle of people around him . . . enormously 

composed. . .

"Amid this hurrcaane of sound and feeling, he seemed like the eye of 

the hurrcaane ... He seemed purged," the newspaper quoted Plimpton.

The author told the court that immediately after the shooting he 

grabbed for the gun along with severe others, but didn’t see the sector

L

more —
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fall to the floor.

"I didn’t have enough courage to look back in that direction,” he 

added.

Schrade testifeed about being seriously wounded in the hail of 

gunfire and when walking with the senator hie observed "all hell breaking 

loose. I heard some crackling noises, like elecCricity, and I saw some 

faashes. I was badly shaken and I thought we were being electrocuted.”

He was shot i.n the head, just above the hairline, but has since 

recovered.

Arnot, acknowledged under questioning by Dep. Dist. Atty. David N. 

Fitts that he sold two boxes of .22-caliber amnuuntion to Sirhan.

"Then,” related a Los Angeles newspaper (Times) "hie began t° tell 

of three men — one of them presumably Sirhan — who entered the shop 

on the date of the sale.

"Arnot was quickly interuupeed by Fitts, who asked him if a lie 

detector test latter administered to him had not cast doubt on that story.

"Arnot admtted that this was true.

"Defense Atty. Grant B. Cooper then asked Arnot: 'The truth of 

the uuater is, you don’t remember to whom you sold that auuunitlon, do 

you?’

’’’No,’ said Arnot.”

Erhard said he and Price and another person, whom he could not 

rememUbr, met Munir Sirhan on a Pasadena street corner and sold- the 

gun to Munir for $25, after originally demanding $30.

more—
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Price related that Munir Sirhan borrowed $5 from Sirhan Sirhan 

when Mwiir purchased the gun. Price also recalled holding the weapon 

and turning it over to Sirhan B. Sirhan.

Tracing the history of the gun was Ms. Hertz who said her husband 

originally purchased it foioowing the Waats riots of 1965. She testified 

she gave the gun to her daughter, Mrs. Westlake, and told her to "throw 

it on the dump,” accordiLng to a story in a L°s Angeles newspaper (Times).

Mrs. Westlake testifeed she didn’t throw tW gun on the dump but 

instead stored it in the attic of her hope.

In the mi of 1967, she gave it to Erhard, the newspaper elated.

■X s s

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 20 - "Supeeior Judge »»»«* V. Waltee’s 

insssennee that the jury tet^inis any penalty in the murder of fenatOT 

Robert F. Kennedy has ail but eUmlnahid the possibility of a guilty 

plea by Sirhan Bishara Sirhan,11 a Los Angel.es newspaper (Tin^s) reported 

today.
Continued the article:

"Sirhan and his attorneys were oilling to plead guilty to first; 

degree Purder last week — on condition that tW defendant be guaranteed 

a life term rather than the death penalty.
“But Sirhan balked at the last minute, when Judge WTWr refused 

to gve hil required consent to the arrangement. The 69-year ol.i 

jurist; indicated he would accept a guuity plea on^ on ^nddtion that 

the penalty be ^t by the jury.

more—
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"Later he is said to have confided that his reason for this was 

a resolve to guarantee a full airing of the facts surrounding the 

senator’s assassination. .

’Sirhan'then reportedly took the positoon, aft;er consulting with 

his lawyers, that the jury might vote the death penalty even if it 

were not sought by the prosecution."

The article then raised the question of why the prosecution 

and defense decided "to take the proposal of a change of plea to 

Judge Walker."

Said the newspaper:

"The defense attorneys conceded that Sirhan did the shooting. 

They have puubicly stated that their main goal in the case is to save 

his Ifee.

"By agreeing to a change in plea, With a guaranteed Ifee prison 

term, they would have accomplished such a mission.

"The prosecution, on the other hand, fully intnnded foom the 

beginning to seek the? d^th penalty — and ^It tlsro was a good 

chance of success. ■
"However, psychhatric reports furnihied to both prosecution 

and defense reduced these chancti;.

"The prosecution is said to hlvt fet that if it hli only a 

maaginel chance of securing the death penalty for Sirhan, the in­

terest of the public might best be served by accepting a guilty plea, 

with Iffe in prison, thus saving a great deal of time and tXptnit and 

personal anglt:iih for the families and iniividulls involved.

"And the prosecution has iniicaeid that it would make public 

the full record of its investigatorne in the event of a guilty plea.

more —
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"Presumably there still could be a change of plea. But that 

is unlikely unless either Judge Walker or Sirhan reverses his 

present thinking.

"Meanwhile, the prosecution is pushing ahead with its case 

against Sirhan..

Another Los Angeles newspaper (Daaiy Journal) today reported 

that the estimated cost to Los Angeles County for the trial reached 

$395,960, as of January 31.

They quoted County Supervisor Kenneth Hahn as noting he thought 

the expense was worth it if it would prevent the necessity of pre­

paring another Warren Commiision report. However, he said, he 

would continue to watch the expenses.

more —
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THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 20 — Defense attorneys for Sirhan today made 

a second motion for a misSrial on grounds their clients defense was preju­

diced by a story in the Los Angel.es Times (see above for details).

Suppeior Judge Walker, reported the newspaper, 'demied the motion 

at an incCaambers session highligheed by a prosecution request that such 

closed proceedings, both past and future, be made public."
Chief Dep. Dist. Atty. Lynn D. Compton, who heads the three-man 

prosecution team, said, "Wk think owk of t^ vices of to wtole situate 

... and what creates a problem, is the idea of sealing (transcripts) and 

secret sessions.

’•'We just feel that everything has got to be on the record and 

public and that there should be no secret negotiations, conferences or 

maters which are in that category.

"I would oppose any further . . . pro codings which are sealed, 

secret or otherwise handled in that fashion," Compton concluded.
Meanwhhle, Grant B. Cooper, one of tlie three deferse attorneys, 

answered that in plea bargaining, "it is always a s^r^ matter.15 

In open court, the prosecution coottnued its c^ against tlw 

accused assassin of Sen. Kennedy and called the fclawing to testify:

Mrs. Elizabeth Ev^s, who was one of five persons injueed at the 

Ambassador Hotel, where the senator was assassinated;

Ira Godstein, former wkhspapemman who was also indeed;

Officer James E. Claborne and Sergeant Riley W. Maawwei, Los 

Angeles Police Department fwnierprint experts;

Judy Royer, a secretary for former Caaifornaa Gov. Edmund G. 

Brown, who worked for the Kkwwkdy campaign and witnessed the slaying.

more —
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Telling of the shooting, (G>ldstein said he "heard loud popping 

noises. '•

In response to a question from Dep. Dist. Atty. David N. Fitts, 

Goodstein said he heard "two of them at first. I quickly moved to my 

left. I stepped over someone who had fallen to the ground."

Mrs. Evans, under questioning by Dep. Dist. -Atty.- John Howard, 

said she "'heal’d a sound Ikke fieecrakkers. I lost my shoe. Everything 

happened very fast."

She told of being taken to a table and finally by ambulance to 

a hospital, where she underwent surgery for the gunshot wound.

(Sirhan is on trial for the assassinateon of Sen. Kennedy, and 

is also charged with five counts of assault with a deadly weapon with in­

tent te ^ranit murder against Mrs. Evans, Goldstein, Irwin Stroll, Paul 

Schrade and Willamm Weesel).

According to a tes Angel.es newspaper (Herald-EXaminer,, "Police 

Officer Travis Wite . . . scored an important point for the prosecution" 

today.

In his opening statement, Defense Atty. Emile Zola Berman told 

the jury the defense ineended to prove that Sirhan was "in a trance and 

intoxicated1' when he admittedly shot Kennedy, said the newspaper.

However, WEte testifeed that a iupil-eeactrnn test of Sirhan’s 

eyes, taken minutes after his ric•lst, indicated he was not drunk.

■ Explaining the test, Wiite said he shined a light in Sirhan’s

eyes in a darkened room and that the pupils contracted normaiy. An indi­

cation of intoxication, he said, would have been a slow contraction. White 

also looked for other indications of intoxicateon — eyes watering,

more —
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weaving, blurred speech and alcoholic breath -- and could find none.

Sergent IfexeU and Office CLaborne testifeed to discovering 

Sirens fingerprints on his car parked three blocks from the hotel. In 

the car was a sales slip for amunition purchased at a Pa’adena gun shop 

for Sirhan’s .22-caliber revolver used to shoot Kennedy.

The sergeant also visited that he found Sirhan’s fingerprints on 

the sales slip.

Mi’’ Royer testifeee to seeing Sirhan hanging around press head­

quarters for tte Kennedy campnign before the shooting. She told him to go 

away and he did, she revealed.

more —
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FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 21 — The prosecution in the case against Sirhan 

B. Sirhan, the accused assassin of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy, today called the 

follwfcg to testify:

Alvin Clark, a Pasadena trash collector befreended by the accused 

assassin;

Irwin Stroll, who was among the five wounded on the night the 

senator was kiieed;

William Weesel, who was also injured;

Dr. Stanley Abo, a physician who attended the Kennedy victory 

party, and who aided the strckken senator moments after the shooting; and

Mrs. Miraam Davis, a Kennedy campaign worker.

According to a Los Angeles newspaper .(Times), Sirhan was arguing 

with-Clark soon after the assassination of Matin Luther King, Clark 

testifeed.

Sirhan, relaeed Clark, said:

"•Wiat are you going to vote for that son of a B for? Because I’m 

planning on shooting him.-

Continued the newspaper:

i^irlan did, loss tian Wo months after that conversation, and 

prosecution witness Alvin Clark testifeed to defense attonney Ernie Zola 
D'—msn Friday that he told the FBI the folOownng September that he was 

unwillnng to testify against his accused freend — but the reason was not 

frenndship now.

"Didn’t you tell the FBI you did not want to take the oath be­

cause you ^ted Sirhan so much you'd do anything to see him convicted?51' 

asked Berman.

more —
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"’Yes, I did,1: said Clark.

"Dep. Dist. Atty. David N. Fitts quickly interjected: 'Have you 

told the truth here, sir'?’

■■•’Yes,’ Clark repleed firmly. I have.7'-

Sirhan, Clark related, according to the newspaper, fell into the 

habit of providing coffee, soft drinks and sandwiches to Clark when he 

made the usual Wednesday trash pickup at the Sirhan home. : I thought very 
much of him,,: said Clark.

Stroll testifeed that he was a Kennedy volunteer worker guarding 

a doorway when he was cut down by a bullet in his left calf.

• 'I felt someone kick me," said Stroll, adding that he didn’t 

k:no>w at first he had been shots. 'Then I noticed — because I had on blue 

pants — that one of my legs was "red.-

One of the defense attorneys, Grant B. Cooper, cross-examined 

Stroll, and .asked if he (Stroll) had brought an action of a milloon and a 

half dollars against the defendant for the injury to his leg.

Stroll answered that he had.

(The suit, fieed earlier this month, actually seeks $’,050,000.) 

Dr. Abo said Kennedy’s right eye was open, • sttring aimlessly," 

and the left eye was closed. As he bent to see if Kennedy needed artsifi- 

cial respiration, Abo related, the senators left eye opened 'very quickly 

with a puzzled look.:

He also said that when Mrs. Ethel Kennedy arrived at her husband's 

side, the senator "reached out and took her hand and spoke to her."

"The defense objected that the conversation was immatteial and 

the objection was sustained,- reported the newspaper.

more —
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M's. Davis told of seeing Sirhan in a kitchen in the Ambassador 

Hotel on June 2, 196>8 — some 47 hours before Kennedy was shot. ‘The 

prosecution contends he was 'casing’ the plate/ said a Los Angeles news­

paper (Herald-Examiner).

Meanwhile, Dr. Thomas T. Noguchi, county thief medical examiner­

coroner, who was in charge of conducting the autopsy on the senator, may 

face ouster proceedings, a Los Angeles newspaper (Times) reported.

. . dissatisfaction arose over Dr. Noguchi's asserted-delay 

in handling the autopsy . . .< stated the newspaper,, referring to a ' 

staeement by L. S. Hollinger, county chief adminnstrative officer, that he 

has asked Noguchi to resign.

Dr. Noguchi said today that no one could have done a more 

thorough job in the autopsy.

'We did everything that should be done,: he insisted. If there

was a delay, it was indeed justifiable.-

#
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WEEKLY SUMMARY #39
Re; The assassination of 
Senator Robert F. Kennedy

Note to editors: Because of the widespread interest 
i.n the assassination of Senator Robert F. Kennedy in 
Los Angeles on Wednesday, June 5, 1968, and pro­
ceedings in court, the Office of Los Angeles County 
District Attorney Evelle J. Younger is publishing a 
weekly summary of the case. This is the 39th 
summary, and others will be for reeease on subsequent 
Wednesdays.

SUNDAY, FEBRUARY 23 — ' Prosecutors ineend to conclude their case 

against Sirhan Bishara Sirhan by midweek — showing why the young Arab 

should die in the gas chamber for the murder of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy/' 

according to Myrna Oliver, staff writer, in a Los Angeles newspaper 

(Herald-Examiner) today.
The newspaper reported there might be a '-hassle over Emission 

into evidence of diaries kept by Sirhan before the June 5 slaying . . .’ 

and this "could extend the prosecution’s case.-

One of Sir-han’s attorneys, Russsei V. Parsons, sought in pre- 

uriaL maneuvers to have the diaries suppressed as evidence, claiming they 

were seized iieegally at Sir-han’s Pasadena home.

However, Superior Judge Herbert V. Walker, who i.s presiding, 
ruled OT Oct. 22 ttet the ^ries would not be suppressed. He said they 

could be intrdduced in court and that hie would rule on their admission at 

that time. ■ '

The writer, noting that when the trial began Jan.. 7 it was ex­

pected to last three months, quoted Parsons as s^ing, ’I think they (the
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prosecution) are trying to shorten the triLal. It is going much faster than 

we thought.'"
Although the prosecution said they would call 80 witnesses, "they 

have n^t subssannially reduced the planned number of witnesses, but they 

have raced through the questioning, and will coelute thkLr case in about 
two weeks of testimony,’ said the newspaper reporter.

' Also speeding up the trial is a move by defense to diminish the 

cumulative impact of the prosecution witnesses’ tkstimonl. By refusing to 

cross-examine witnesses at length or at all, they reduce the growing bulk 

of words that could work against Sirhan.1

Grant B. Cooper, chief defense counsel, told the newspaper, he 

planned to have the Sirhan family — the mother, brothers and Sirhan him­

self — testify, follwwed by psycMitrists.

Cooper has estimated his case will take - three to four weee:s.:-

MONDAY, FEBRUARY 24 — The prosecution in the Sirhan B. Sirhan 

case today called the foUwwnng to testify:

DeWayne Woofer, Los Angeles Police Department SatlistCss expert;

Sergeant Willamm E. Brandt, Los Angeles Police Department,- who 

searched the Sirhan home in Pasadena for evidence reltting to the case; and

Dr. Henry M. Cuneo, neurosugeonn at Good Samirittn Hospital who 

operated on Sen. Kennedy about three hours after the shooting at the 

Ambassador Hooel.

At todays session, c^l^ photographs foom the coroner’s inquest 

on the senator were shown to the jurors for the first time.

‘'The smart courtooom was quiet as the 12 regular and six alternate
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jurors examined the two photographs silently, with little visible reaction, 

passed them on and examined the fatal ballet and the senator's shredded 

coat,- reported Dave Smith, staff writer, i.n a Los Angeles newspaper (Times).

The photographs were introduced as Dep. Dist. Atty. David N. Fitts 

questooned Woofer. Grant B. Cooper, Okfknsk attorney, objected that the 

photographs were 'highly inflilmlttoyy and iimatekitl to the issues i.n this 

case,'. but Supeeior Judge Herbert V. Walker overruled the objection.

It was pointed out by Smith that "the Okfknsk has admitted 

throughout the trial, now eight weeks old, that Sirhan freed the shot that 

kiUdd Sen, Kennedy after he won the Catifornta Demioratic primary last 

June 4."

Continued the newspaper articee:

'"The photographs show the right side of Sen. Kennedy's head 

partially shaved, with the bullet wound behind the right ear and extensive 

'tartoonng* — powder burns and lead and powder particles imbedded in the 

skin — on and behind the ear.

"Woofer testifedd that tests sh.owkO the fatal wound — a .22 

caliber bullet i.n Sen. Kennedy's brain — was fieed from about one inch 

foom the senator's head.

Wolfer also testifedd that Sen. Kennedy's coat showed fvve 

bullet hol.es — three entry holes and two exit holes. Besides the fatal 

bullet to the brain, another bullet was found i.n soft tsssue near the 

sixth vertebra, Woofer tlstifleO.!

Also admitted into evidence today, despite Okfknse objectors 

that it was ireekevtnt to the case, was the senators coat, cut away foom 

his body and later crudely sttthhed together for baaiistccs and firing­

tests. ■
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•'■Sirhan became agitated shortly before adjournment, ■ reported the 

newspaper, as Fitts, ••queetioning Sgt. Brandt began leading up to the 

controversial dades in which Sirhan i.s reported to have writnet Kennedy 

must be assassinated before June 5.?i

As the three 81-by-l1 inch spiral notebooks were shown to the 

police sergeant, •Sirhan began whispering urgently to his attorneys.

Cooper quickly asked Judge Walker for a recess, saying 'our client has re­

quited it,1' crnttnued the newspapee’s account.

The judge instead adjourned court for trim day.

;Cooper later told newsmen that Sirhan didn’t want the notebooks 

admitt^ into evidence and mistakenly thought they had been accepted into 

iidicrn without objection foom his defense/' added the newspaper.

•They hadn’t, but it is a certainty that they will be/- related 

the newspaper.

Reporter Smith said 'the prosecution damns the notebooks show 

Sirhan’s ernienntation to murder Sen. Kennedy. And while the defense has 

moved to suppress those pontoons of Sirhan’s diaries, the defense nonethe­

less plains to use other pontoons to support their contention that Sirhan’s 

capacity to plan was diainSsnnd by obsessive traits.

•The defense, in fact, quoted foom the notebooks in its opening 

staneaent, citnng a so-called ’nnclnrntOnn of war against Aamnican humannty’ 
by Sinha’ last May."

Before adjournment, Brandt told of going to the Sinha’ home and 

admitted that he did not have a search warrant. The newspaper related 

that "he didn’t ntnampt to get one after being given Add's (Sinha’’ 

brothen) eeraissOon to enter the home.
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In his testimony, Dr. Cuneo descrieed how after a taacheotomy, 

the senator's esseenial like functions staiilieed to the point wherk a 

medical team felt he could withstand surgery, and how, after the tra­

cheotomy, Sen. Kennedy's conditoon remained stable for more than 10 hours.

Cuneo contnnued that the senior's blood pressure, pulse, car­

diac condition and breathing were relatively normal after the surgery -­

so that he was breathing on his own, without oechanical aid -- until the 

tfternoon of June 5, when klecroknnePhhaOogrPhh moontoring showed that the 

tow Actions were beginning to fail.

Kennedy was pronounced dead at 1:4-4 a.m. on June 6, slightly more 

ton 25 tors after the shooting.
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TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 25 — : Six pages of chaotic, sometimes illegi­

ble scribbling in a spiral notebook, along with samples of (Sirhan B.) 

Sirhan’s handwriting and two envelopes were admitted into evidence’’ today, 

according to a Los Angeles newspaper (Times).
The witness by the 24-year old Jordanian immigrant, accused of 

assassinating Sen. Robert F. Kennedy and injurnng five other persons 

showed "his anger at the United States, a firm but obviously unintrrmed 

belief in communirm and a growing determinatoon to kill- the senator, 

added Dave Smith, staff writer, in the newspaper-.

In another Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-iXominer), John Douglas, 

staff writer, noted that the defendants emotional state has taken cm Iter 

stage in hi.s murder trial and his lawyers doubt their ability to connrol 

him when diaries — in which he expressed his desire to kill Sen. Robert 

Kennedy -- are read to his jury.

. The reporter noted that Sirhan treed twice today rto plead guilty 
and halt his trial rather than alow the jury to learn the contents of 

three diaries he kept prior to Juine 5, 1968, when he admittedly shot the 

New York sennaor.1

Grant B. Cooper, one of Sirhan’s attorneys, said We’re not going 

to let him* plead guilty, and that his client blew -'his t;op>, that’s all,1- 

referring to what happened in court today.

' The Times said that Sirhan’s : sudden change of heart came . . . 

in Supprior Judge Herbert V. Walker’s chambers, before the. trial resimied 

with argument on admission of notebooks in which Sirhan wrote of his in­

tent to assassinate Sen. Robert F. Kennedy.”

One of the envelopes was found last June 6, hours after the
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senator died, and contained this note, RIFK must be disposed of like his 

brother was.'

Continued the Times article:
’''Before the ruling on the no-tebooks, it was learned that Sirhan 

told Judge Walker that if they were admitted, he would be railoadted into 

tiiie gas chamber.
"He reportedly told Judge Walker that he didn't want the Judge 

'gloatnng over tier fact that you made people thini I got a fair trial.'

’•nnstesd, Sirhan i.s reported to have said, he would rat^r 

'stand up right now and plead guilty and go to the gas chlm-ek.'lit Was learned that Sirhan said Judge Waaker was not giving him 

a fair trial in letting the notebooks into evidence and clammed that prose­

cution use of the notebooks, taken from his P^toa home last June 5 

without a search warrant, violaeed hi.s connsitutional rights.

’Judge Walker reportedly told Sirhan that his best interests 

were being protected by his three-man defense team — Cooper, Enik Zola 

Bkr‘mln and Russsei B. Parsons — and that he should foioow t^ir adv:i.ce.t'

As Dep. Dist. Atty. David N. Fitts began to describe the contents 

of the notebooks to the jury, Sirhan raised his hand and said, "Your 

honor, excuse me for interruptnng.’ Defense attorneys whispered to Sirhan 

and then requested a recess.

For about a half-hour i.n an adjoining room, the defense lttonkeys, 

Sirhan's mother and brother, Munir, 21, treed to calm the suited d^em^nt 

and talk him out of changing his plea.

Cooper then was granted a contnnuance unil Wednesday, February 

26.
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The Times artide noted that "Sirhan's wish to plead guilty and 

face the death penalty is a reversal of his positoon of two weeks ago, 

when both defense and prosecution attorneys were willing for Sirhan to 

'plead guilty to fisst-dgreee murder with the understand^ that he would 
receive a liee sentence.

"Judge Walker rejected that arrangement, iisistigg that thie 

question of penalty — death or lie imprsonnment be left up to the jury.

At that, Sirhan, then iiwilling to risk a possible death sen­
tence, refused to change his plea.-

As for the writnngs of Sirhan, some months before the assassi­

nation, the defendant wrote:

"I advocate the overthrww of the current president of the--------  

United States of Aneeica. I have no absolute plans yet — but soon will 
compose some ... I am pooo."

This was in two pages — labeled : highly infaeIlmatrry and preju­

dicial to the defense" by Cooper — which was barred fom evidence.

Howwver, Judge Walker denied Cooper’s repeated plea to admonish 

all parties not to divulge their contents to the press.

"I don’t think the court can restrict the press in any way," said 

the judge. The connroversial two pages will be kept from the eyes of the 

jury, which is sequestered throughout the trial.

Chid Dep. Dist. Atty. Lynn D. Compton argued successfully that 

the public had the right to know 'what notivaeed the defendant.- And he 

also suggested that tie contents of the two pages, iffleImatoyy or not, 

ilissiradee Sirhan’s thinking and underscored the 'sole issue" in the trial.

As the prosecutor argued for reeease of the two pages, Sirhan
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sprang to his feet and shouted in Arabic. At this point, Compton was re­

ferring to Sirhan’js ’"advocating the overthoow of the country.'-

Meanwhile, in a somewhat related maater, the county coroner­

chief meeical examiner, Dr. Thomas Noguchi, who was in charge of the au­

topsy on Sen. Kennedy, resinned effective March 4.
L. S. Hooiinger, chief county adminnstrator, and meromers of the 

County Board of Supervisors were slated to go into executive s^sion today 

to hear Hollnnger’s compPaints against Noguchi. The meeting was adjoined 

amid reports of Dr. Noguchi’s possible resignation.

Last Friday, Dr. Noguchi defended his record,; including the au­

topsy on Kennedy. Hooiinger insiseed he was not referring to the Kegged.y 

death when he issued a Jtakepkgt that he had received "a number of com­

plaints and charges about the way Dr. Noguchi runs his office.'1 

J# sb

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 26 — Los Angeles County Dist. Atty. Evelle 

J. Younger today issued a statement denying a report by Frank Mankiewicz 

and Tom Braden that Secretary of State Willamm Rogers had - approved’- a 

possible dispositonn in the Sirloin case.
The comment appeared in a column by the pair in the Waahington 

Post, which Younger temmed t;iaaccuratk. Mr. Rogers did not discuss this 

case with me. He did not approve, disapprove or otherwise comment upon 

any phase of the Sirhan case.it

In his statement issued today, the pro^cutor repeated an karlikr 

Stakkpegt (February 11), in which he remarked:

’ In the event the government wished to ^e any comenks con- 

^rning the dispositonn of this case insofar as it may have international
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implications, and insofar as it may particularly rklatk to probkims in the 

Middle East, I wanted them to be able to do so.
"I made it convenient for appropriate officials i.n the gov^rrn^t 

(present adminnstration) to express an opinion to me — they declined and 

made no co)mmknt or rkcimmmkndtion,''' concluded Younger i.n February.

Today he said, '-This statement was true at the time. It is ssill 

true. Mr. Rogers has not discussed the Sirhan case with me to this date. 

He has made no recommendations. I don’t anticppate that he will.’ .

The Mankiewicz-Braden colimn related that "The Statue Department 

specifically approved an agreement cached h^ (Los Angeles) last wkkk by 

which Sirhan Sirhan would change his plLea to -gLUty-'' in exchange for a 

sentence of Iffe imprsoonment. '
■ ’-Los Angel.es Dist. Atty. IVeHe Younger advised Secretary of

State Wiliamm Roger’s in Washington of these poosSbilittes i.n the bargaining 

between his office and the Sirhan defen.se staff and received approval of 

Rogers for the plant

In court today, the prosecution called its final threes witnesses 

to testify, but indicated it would recall Laurence Stone, handwriting ex­

pert for the District Attorney's Office, Monday. Stone tstlblShked that 

the Sirhan Diaries were i.n the defendants hmdwwrting.

The prosecution today questooned: ■

Dr. Thomas Noguchi, county coroner-medical ^ami^r;

Dr. V. Faustin Bazilauskas; and

Lt. Wiliamm C. Jordan, Los Angeles Police Department.

In nine days, the prosecution called 56 witnesses out of 80 Lt 

had ready, and offered the jury 80 exhibits.
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, Dr. Noguchi, who has resigned effective March 4, described the

autopsy performed on Sen. Kennedy shortly after death, 1:44 a..m. on June 6, 

1968.
Under 'queet-ioning iy Chief Dep. Dist. Atty. Lynn D. Corpton, the 

county coroner said a bullet fieed at one-inch muzzle range, which pierced 

the senator's skull and brain, was the cause of d^th.

A second bullet, removed from the feeshy part of the senator's 

neck, near the vertebrae, would not have caused death, said the cor^r.

The second witness, Dr. Bazilauskas, who ateended Kennedy at 

Central Receiving Hospital where he was taken after the shooting, ’said the? 

senator was ‘‘'lifeless'' when brought to the hospital.
His breathing and pul.se were restored through heart message and 

us1 of a heart-lung machine, add.ed Dr. BazHauskas.

He said Kennedy's conedtiot was stable and his pulse and breathing 

"good" when he was transferred to Good Samraitlt Hoositll for surgery.

Lt. Jordan descrbbed Sirhan as ,■extkrrkly poit! and as "onk of 

the most alert and ietfllifeet people I have ever interoogated or iteompted 

to interoogite.'-’

. Compton revealed that three more exhibits were prepared, but not

admitted into evidence — including a passage from the Sirhan di-ar^es rulssd. 

by Judge Herbert V. Walker t,o be too •"enflamltory:■ for the jurors' eyes. 
■ The chief deputy district attorney said he would insert into the 

record, although not skkk to present to the jury, stakrreets taken from 200 

other peripheral witnesses questooned in his invfstigltoen °f the cask. 

■ ■•! don't want anyone t,o think we are hiding anything,1' he ex­

plained to a Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Sxarieer) .
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Cooper told reporters today that the defense expkcts to call 

about 30 witnesses and will take about three weeks to present their case. 

"'Lengthy prosecution cross-examination could extend this estimate, he 

conceded,11 reported the same newspaper.

The newspaper continued that Sirhan, his mother, brother, Munir, 

will testify and that the defense is ,:expect;ed’' to call at least six 

psychologists and psychiatrisss in its attempt t° shew Sirhan acted u^r 

diminssedd mental capacity in the shooting."

‘ Another Los Angeles newspaper (Times) reported that • Sirhan,

uneasy about his defense straeegy and unruly at his murder trial this week, 

is 'eoing to have to calm down or get another lawyer,’ one of his defense 

attorneys warned him . . .”

. ■ Continued the article:

! Two other warnings came from Supeeior Judge Herbert V. Walker:

• ' 1. ’f Sirhan should lose or fire his three-man defense team

and then undertake his own defense, the jurists said, 'There is one thing 

’ have always told all (defendants acting as their own cownssl): when they

are being treed for murder in a case before me they usually- go to thes gas 

chamber.’

• • 2. If Sirhan doesn’t connrol his courtooom outburst's, he will

be phys-cally restranned — perhaps by being staapped in his chair during 

court sessions.1, ;
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- FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 28 — Sirhan Bishara Sirhan, on trial for the

slaying of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy and injuring fVve other persons, today in 

court tried to fire his defense counsel and demanded to change his plea to 

gULlty and be executed.

According to a Los Angeles newspaper (Times), Sirhan was "infuri­

ated at disclosure of his school grades and his IQ of 89.*' At the Imine of

the outburst, John T. Haaris, Pasadena school official, was on the witness 

stand, discribing grades and test evaluations of Sirhan.

The newspaper reported that Sirhan, "in a firm but angry Voice" 

said: "I kiieed Robert F. Kennedy willfully, premediatedyy and with 20 
year’s of malice aforethought . . .■

Superior Judge Herbert V. Walker refused to accept the change of

plea or the firnng of the three-man defense team. The judge threatened the

defendant with a face mask and arm straps to keep him in his chair if there 

are further outbursts.

After the blow-up, Russeel E. Parsons, one of Sirhan’s attorneys, 

whispered with the defendant and asked for a r’eceee. The jury was led out 

and Grant B. Cooper, another Sirhan attonney who was questioning Haaris, 

explaneed that Sirhan had earlier said he would forbid the calinng of about 

a dozen witnesses his lawyers behaved should testify. '

; Cooper said Sirhan had later calmed down and promised cooperation,

but that he now wanted to. speak up in court.

There foiowwed this exchange between j’udge and accused, as re­

ported in the newspaper:

. Judge Walker: There is something you wanted to say? .

Sirhan: May I address the court in chambers, sir?
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